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APPENDIX A--As Amended

Published in the FEDERAL REGISTER on October 8, 1% FR 52479
Effective on November 7, 1997

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
10 CFR Part 820

Procedural Rules for DOE Nuclear Activities; General Statement of Enforcement
Policy

AGENCY: Department of Energy
ACTION: Interim rule; amendment of enforcement policy statement

SUMMARY: The Department of Energy (DOE) is amending its General Statement of
Enforcement Policy (Policy), which is contained in an Appendix to the Procedural Rules for
DOE Nuclear Activities. DOE has reevaluated this Policy in consideration of the changing
mission of DOE and experience gained from applying the Policy since its publication.
Under the amended Policy, DOE no longer intends to base civil penalty amounts on the
type of nuclear facility involved. The amended Policy also adds new sections on (1) DOE’s
use of enforcement letters to close out investigations, (2) self-identification and tracking
systems, and (3) self-disclosing events.

DATES: This amended Policy takes effect on November 7, 1997, which is 30 days after
publication in theFederal Register Although the amended Policy will be effective
November 7, 1997, DOE invites andlmconsider public comment. Written comments must
be received by November 7, 1997.

ADDRESSES: Written comment (5 copies) should be addressed to: R. Keith Christopher,
U.S. Department of Engy, Office of Enforcement and Investigation, EH-1@®901

Germantown Road, Germantown, MD 20876-1290, (301) 903-0100. Written comments may
be examined between 9 a.m. and 4 p.m., Monday through Friday, in: U.S. Department of
Energy, Reading Room, Room 1IB0, 1000 Independence Avenue SW., Washington, DC
20585, (301) 586-6020.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Howard Wilchins, U.S. Department of Erggy, Office of Enforcement and Investigation,
EH-10, 19901 Germantown Road, Germantown, MD 20876-1290, (301) 903-0100.
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I. Background

DOE's Nuclear Safety Requiremehtet forth the requirements for DOE's contractors,
subcontractors and suppliers to ensure that DOE's nuclear facilities and activities are
operated in a manner that protects worker and public safety and the environment. In
promulgating Procedural Rules for DOE Nuclear Activities, DOE published a General
Statement of Enforcement Policy (Policy) as Appendix Ato 10 CFR Part 820, 58 FR 43680
(Aug. 17, 1993). The Policy provides the bases and processes DOE uses to take
enforcement actions for violations of the DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements. The
enforcement provisions embodied in Part 820 and reflected in the Policy are based on a
philosophy of encouraging contractors to provide adequate protection of safety, health, and
the environment in compliance with the DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements. The Policy
provides for discretion in pursuing enforcement actions where contractors demonstrate
initiative in safety management performance, self-identification of deficiencies, self-
reporting of noncompliances to DOE, and prompt and comprehensive corrective actions for
the deficiencies identified. Where a contractor’s actions are not adequate, DOE may issue

110 CFR §820.2 defines "DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements” as ‘the set of enforceable
rules, regulations, or orders relating to nuclear safety adopted by DOE (or by another Agency if
DOE specifically identifies the rule, regulation, or order) to govern the conduct of persons in
connection with any DOE nuclear activity and includes any programs, plans, or other provisions
intended to implement these rules, regulations, orders, a Nuclear Statute or the [Atomic Energy]
Act, including technical specifications and operational safety requirements for DOE nuclear
facilities. For purposes of the assessment of civil penalties, the definition of DOE Nuclear Safety
Requirements is limited to those identified in 10 CFR 8§ 820.20(b).” Section 820.20(b) states that
civil penalties may be assessed on the basis of a violation of any DOE Nuclear Safety
Requirement, a Compliance Order, or any program, plan, or other provision required to
implement such Requirement or Compliance Order.
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a Preliminary Notice of Violation and propose the assessment of civil penalties under the
authority of the Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988AR).

Since the Policy was published in August 1993, DOE has accumulated experience in
applying the Policy. The complexion of DOE's operating facilities and activities has
changed over the past several years. In particular, its array of weapons production
facilities and activities has been significantly reduced so that DOE now manages a broad
mix of operating facilities, research and development activities, decontamination and
decommissioning operations, and environmental management and restoration activities.
DOE has reevaluated the structure of its Policy considering the changing mission of DOE
and its experience with the Policy. This reevaluation found that the Policy emphasized
hazards based on the type of nuclear facilities and activities, such as the risk to the public
of an accident involving a reactor or a release of large quantities of radiological material.
The Policy placed inadequate emphasis on violations that caused or potentially caused a
significant hazard to a worker or the environment, regardless of the type of facility or
activity involved, in determining the applicable base civil penalty. That result sent a
message to contractors inconsistent with DOE's intent to focus attention on assuring the
safe conduct of work at its facilities and during nuclear activities conducted for DOE.

DOE in recent years has placed greater responsibility on management and operating and
other contractors to assure the safety of the public, workers, and the environment for the
activities that they perform. This has included use of incentive or award fees to recognize
proper performance by contractors, integration of safety management systems, and
application of enforcement sanctions for significant cases where DOE Nuclear Safety
Requirements have not been met. DOE’s amendment to the Policy is consistent with the
philosophy of emphasizing the importance of protecting workers, the public and the
environment. The amendment also clarifies DOE's enforcement processes and policies so
that DOE's expectations and protocols are better understood. Comments received will be
considered and additional amendments made if necessary. This amended Policy will take
effect 30 days from the date of publication.

II. Amendments to Policy
A. Civil Penalty Structure
The PAAA, as modified by the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment A&t960,

establishes a statutory limit of $110,6aih the amount of civil penalties DOE can assess
for each violation. DOE is eliminating the civil penalty structure that is based on the

*The Federal Civil Penalties Inflation pdstment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. 2461 note, as
amended ®pthe Debt Collection Imrovement Act of 1996 (Pub. L. 104-134)gqudéres Federal
agencies torgularly adiust each civil monetarpenalty provided by law within thejurisdiction
of the ageng/. As amended, the law gaires each geng/ to make an initial inflationayr
adiustment for all pplicable civil penalties, and to make further jadtments at least once ever
four years. DOE hapromulgated a new Sugart G in 10 CFR Part 820, 62 FR 461818,
1997) (final rule), to establishylregulation that $110,000 is the new maximum cpénalty per
violation per day authorized p 42 U.S.C. 2282a and 28 U.S.C. 2461 note."
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categorization of the type of nuclear facility, but it is retaining and modifying that portion
of the structure based on the three Severity Levels of violations. DOE is simplifying the
determination of civil penalties by moving from two tables to one table. DOE is removing
Table 1A in newly-designated Section IX which is based on categorization of five types of
nuclear facilities.

Eliminating the sliding scale of civil penalties based on the categorization of type of nuclear
facility will better reflect DOE’s current mission and practices. The categorization of

facility approach, although similar to that in NRC's enforcement pdlisynot appropriate

for DOE's current programs where both large, complex facilities and activities, and
smaller, but not necessarily less hazardous, facilities and activities are often operated and
managed by the same contractors. A violation affecting the environment or the health and
safety of a worker or the public can occur both at high hazard facilities and activities, and
at relatively low hazard facilities and activities at the same site. Accordingly, DOE is
removing the facility categories table from the Policy as a means of establishing the base
civil penalty.

DOE is redesignating Table 1B as Table 1 and revising it to set civil penalty percentages
for violations of Severity Levels I, Il, and Il as a percentage of the maximum statutory
limit for civil penalties per violation per day. Severity Level | violations are assessed at
the highest level of civil penalty of 100% of the statutory limit per violation per day.
Severity Level Il is set at 50% of the statutory limit. Severity Level Ill is set at 10% of the
statutory limit.

For Severity Level Il violations, DOE is reducing the percentage of the statutory limit
from 20% to 10%. DOE believes that a 10% penalty for Category Levelilllhhere

accurately reflect its intent to lower civil penalties for noncompliances of small or indirect
safety consequences and to encourage contractor responsibility for correcting
noncompliances. Except in unusual circumstances, DOE would not assess a civil penalty
for violations of Severity Level Ill. There is no change to the percentages for Severity
Levels | and II.

In the revised table, the dollar amount of the civil penalty to which the percentages apply
has been deleted sothat the percentages now apply to the statutory limit of the maximum
civil penalty that can be assessed, whatever that may be at the time. DOE is required to
adjust the statutory limit for inflation at least every four years. f6eote 2. This

approach is intended to establish a direct relationship between the magnitude of the base
civil penalty and the significance of the violation.

B. Enforcement Letters

SNuclear Regulatory Commission, General Statement of Policy and Procedure for
Enforcement Actions, 61 FR 65561 (Oct. 18, 1996) (revision of policy).
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In its experience with enforcement over the past several years, DOE has developed the
Enforcement Letter to close out investigations. An Enforcement Letter is an

administrative action which has been incorporated into the enforcement process to
streamline the process and to better communicate to contractors the status of DOE closure
of enforcement investigations and DOE expectations for corrective action of a
noncompliance.

Enforcement letters serve to communicate to the contractor DOE's decision not to issue a
Preliminary Notice of Violation for a noncompliance that has been reported to DOE, DOE's
basis for not pursuing enforcement in that case, and notice to the contractor of DOE’s
expectations for implementation of the contractor's commitments to take actions to correct
the noncompliance. While the Enforcement Letter is not addressed in the current Policy
and would not be used in all cases where DOE decides not to pursue a Preliminary Notice
of Violation, it has served an effective role in several investigations that DOE has
undertaken involving more complex matters or those of some safety significance. The
amended Policy adds Section VIl to describe DOE's use of Enforcement Letters.

C. Self-ldentification and Tracking Systems

The amended Policy adds a new paragraph 5 in newly-designated Section IX on self-
identification and tracking systems. This paragraph emphasizes that contractors should
be proactive in identifying and reporting noncompliances before they result in an event
with potential safety consequences and should take prompt and effective corrective actions
to correct noncompliances to preclude recurrence. Contractors have tended to rely on self-
reporting to expect significant reduction or full remission of civil penalties for simply
reporting noncompliances that occur. The amended Policy encourages contractors to use
the full spectrum of appropriate safety management responses such as prompt self-
identification, reporting, and timely and effective corrective action to improve nuclear
safety.

The present Policy notes that DOE would consider partial reduction of a civil penalty if a
contractor self-identifies the noncompliance and reports it to DOE. With the impracticality
of formally reporting all noncompliances with DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements,
including, for example, minor or trivial noncompliances with procedures, DOE will allow
contractors an option of self-tracking those noncompliances that fall below certain
threshold levels. In DOE’'s enforcement guide, Guidance for Identifying, Reporting and
Tracking Nuclear Safety Noncomplian¢geBOE recommends threshold levels. For
noncompliances below the threshold, DOE will accept a contractor’s self-tracking as
acceptable self-reporting if DOE has access to the contractor’s self-tracking system and the
contractor has tagged the items as noncompliances with DOE Nuclear Safety
Requirements. For reporting items of noncompliance of potentially greater safety

“Guidance for Identifying, Reporting and Tracking Nuclear Safety Noncomplia aces
Addendum _Noncompliance Tracking System Users MapD®E-HDBK-1089-95, July 1995.
This guide is available through the DOE Technical Standards Program on the internet at
http://apollo.osti.gov/html/techstds/techstds.html.
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significance above the thresholds, contractors may elect to report through the voluntary
DOE Noncompliance Tracking System (NTS), which is also described in the guide.

D. Self-disclosing events

A new paragraph 6 is added in newly-designated Section IX on self-disclosing events.
Reduction of civil penalties may not be appropriate when a violation is disclosed by an
event or discovered through the subsequent investigation of the root cause of an_eyent (i.e.
a self-disclosing event) because the disclosure is not the result of contractor initiative. The
new paragraph clarifies how DOE would consider reducing penalties for self-disclosing
events. In general, a self-disclosing event does not constitute self-identification of the
noncomplying event, even if the contractor reported it promptly after the event. A
determination to reduce civil penalties for identification of an event after the fact will
depend on various factors, including the duration of the noncompliance, and ease and
opportunities for identification.

E. Summary of Changes

The Department is making formatting changes throughout Appendix A to conform to
Federal Register codification requirements. As a result, paragraph designations such as a.,
b., c., etc. have been added to sections currently containing multiple undesignated
paragraphs. The Department is also making substantive changes by adding new Section
VIII, Enforcement Letter, and redesignating the remaining sections accordingly. Newly-
redesignated Section IX has been reprinted in its entirety to: add paragraph designations
throughout; add paragraph 5, Self-ldentification and Tracking Systems, and paragraph 6,
Self-Disclosing Events; remove Table 1A and revise and redesignate Table 1B as Table 1 in
paragraph 2 Civil Penalty; correct cross-references to the Tables throughout the section;
change references to Section VIl to read ‘this section” to reflect the redesignation; remove
the phrase “and a categorization of DOE facilities operated”, and revise “facilities” to read
“Severity Levels” in paragraph 2c.; remove the phrase “and different categories of
facilities,” revise the phrase$100,000 per day”to read “‘the statutory limit”in paragraph

2e. In paragraph 8, the reference to 10 CFRPart 820.60 is corrected to read “820.50.” In
newly-designated Section XlI, the phrase “$100,000” has been changed toread ‘the
statutory limit”in paragraph a.

Ill. Procedural Requirements

A. Review Under Executive Order 12866

This amended Policy is not a "significant regulatory action" as defined in section 3(f) of
Executive Order 12866, "Regulatory Planning and Review," 58 FR 51735 (Oct. 4, 1993),
and, thus, has not been reviewed by the Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs of the

Office of Management and Budget for this purpose

B. Review Under the Paperwork Reduction Act
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No new information collection requirements subject to the Paperwork Reduction Act, 44
U.S.C. 3501%et seq, are imposed by this amended Policy.

C. Review Under the National Environmental Policy Act

The Department has determined that this amended Policy is not a major federal action
significantly affecting the quality of the human environment within the meaning of the
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 U.S.C. 43&t1seq, and does not require
preparation of an environmental impact statement or an environmental assessment.
Today's action is covered under Categorical Exclusion A.5 in DOE guidelines implementing
NEPA (Appendix Ato Subpart D, 10 CFR Part 1021), which applies to the interpretation or
amendment of an existing rule or regulation that does not change the environmental effect
of the rule or regulation being amended.

D. Review Under Executive Order 12612

Executive Order 12612, "Federalism," 52 FR 41685 (Oct. 30, 1987), requires that
regulations, rules, legislation, and any other policy actions be reviewed for any substantial
direct effects on States, on the relationship between the National Government and the
States, or in the distribution of power and responsibilities among various levels of
government. Ifthere are sufficient substantial direct effects on States, on the relationship
between the National Government and the States, or in the distribution of power and
responsibilities among various levels of government, the Executive Order requires
preparation of a federalism assessment to be used in all decisions involved in promulgating
and implementing a policy action. This action will not have a substantial direct effect on
the institutional interest or traditional functions of the States or various levels of
government.

E. Review Under Executive Order 12988

With respect to the review of existing regulations and the promulgation of new regulations,
section 3(a) of Executive Order 12988, “Civil Justice Reform,” 61 FR 4729

(Feb. 7, 1996), imposes on Executive agencies the general duty to adhere to the following
requirements: (1) eliminate drafting errors and ambiguity; (2) write regulations to

minimize litigation; and (3) provide a clear legal standard for affected conduct rather than
a general standard and promote simplification and burden reduction. Section (3) of
Executive Order 12988 requires Executive agencies to review regulations to determine
whether the applicable standards in section 3 are met. DOE has completed the required
review and determined that, to the extent permitted by law, this amended Policy meets the
relevant standards of Executive Order 12988.

F. Congressional Notification

Consistent with the Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, DOE
will submit to Congress a report regarding the issuance of this amended Policy prior to the
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effective date set forth at the beginning of this notice. The report will note that the Office
of Management and Budget has determined that this amended Policy does not constitute a
"major rule" under that Act. 5 U.S.C. 801, 804.

List of Subjects 10 CFR Part 820

Government contracts, DOE contracts, Nuclear safety, Civil penalty, Criminal penalty
Issued in Washington, D.C., on September 19, 1997.

Assistant Secretary for Environment, Safety and Health

For the reason set forth in the preamble, 10 CFR Part 820 is amended as set forth below:

PART 820 -- PROCEDURAL RULES FOR DOE NUCLEAR ACTIVITIES

1. The authority citation for Part 820 continues to read as follows:42 U.S.C.
2201, 2282(a), 7191

2. Appendix Ato Part 820 -- General Statement of Enforcement Policy is
amended by adding paragraph designations in the following sections:

In Section I., Introduction, add the paragraph designations a. b. c. d. and e. to the
five paragraphs.
In Section V., Procedural Framework, add the paragraph designations a. b. and c. to

the three paragraphs.
In Section VI., Severity of Violations, add the paragraph designations a. b. c. d. e.

and f. tothe six paragraphs.
In Section VII, Enforcement Conferences, add the paragraph designations a. and b.

tothe two paragraphs.

3. Appendix Ato Part 820 is amended by redesignating SectiondIYthrough
Xl as Sections IXthrough XIl and adding a new Section VIIl to read as
follows:

Appendix Ato Part 820 -- General Statement of Enforcement Policy
VIIl. Enforcement Letter

a. In cases where DOE has decided not to issue a Preliminary Notice of Violation, DOE
may send an Enforcement Letter to the contractor signed by the Director. The
Enforcement Letter is intended to communicate the basis of the decision not to
pursue further enforcement action for a noncompliance. The Enforcement Letter is
intended to direct contractors to the desired level of nuclear safety performance. It
may be used when DOE concludes the specific noncompliance at issue is not of the
level of significance warranted for issuance of a Preliminary Notice of Violation
(PNOV). Even where a noncompliance may be significant, the Enforcement Letter
recognizes that the contractor's actions may have attenuated the need for further
enforcement action. The Letter will typically recognize how the contractor handled
the circumstances surrounding the noncompliance and address additional areas
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requiring the contractor’s attention and DOE’s expectations for corrective action.
The Enforcement Letter notifies the contractor that, when verification is received
that corrective actions have been implemented, DOE will close the enforcement
action.

b. In many investigations, an Enforcement Letter may not be required. When DOE
decides that a contractor has appropriately corrected a noncompliance or that the
significance of the noncompliance is sufficiently low, it may close out an investigation
simply through an annotation in the DOE Noncompliance Tracking System (NTS).
SeeGuidance for Identifying, Reporting and Tracking Nuclear Safety
Noncompliancesand Addendum, Noncompliance Tracking System Users Manual
DOE-HDBK-1089-95, July 1995. A closeout of a noncompliance with or without an
Enforcement Letter may only take place after DOE has confirmed that corrective
actions have been completed.

4, Newly-designated Section IX, Enforcement Action, is revised to read as follows:
IX. Enforcement Actions

a. This section describes the enforcement sanctions available to DOE and specifies the
conditions under which each may be used. The basic sanctions are Notices of Violation
and civil penalties. In determining whether to impose enforcement sanctions, DOE will
consider enforcement actions taken by other Federal or State regulatory bodies having
concurrent jurisdiction, e.g., instances which involve NRC licensed entities which are
also DOE contractors, and in which the NRC exercises its own enforcement authority.

b. The nature and extent of the enforcement action is intended to reflect the seriousness of
the violation involved. For the vast majority of violations for which DOE assigns
severity levels as described previously, a Notice of Violation will be issued, requiring a
formal response from the recipient describing the nature of and schedule for corrective
actions it intends to take regarding the violation. Administrative actions, such as
determination of award fees where DOE contracts provide for such determinations, will
be considered separately from any civil penalties that may be imposed under this
Enforcement Policy. Likewise, imposition of a civil penalty will be based on the
circumstances of each case, unaffected by any award fee determination.

1. Notice of Violation

a. A Notice of Violation (either a Preliminary or Final Notice) is a document setting forth
the conclusion of the DOE Office of Nuclear Safety that one or more violations of DOE
Nuclear Safety Requirements has occurred. Such a notice normally requires the
recipient to provide a written response which may take one of several positions
described in Section V of this policy statement. In the event that the recipient concedes
the occurrence of the violation, it is required to describe corrective steps which have
been taken and the results achieved; remedial actions which will be taken to prevent
recurrence; and the date by which full compliance will be achieved.
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b. DOE will use the Notice of Violation as the standard method for formalizing the
existence of a violation and, in appropriate cases as described in this section, the notice
of violation will be issued in conjunction with the proposed imposition of a civil penalty.

In certain limited instances, as described in this section, DOE may refrain from the
issuance of an otherwise appropriate Notice of Violation. However, a Notice of Violation
will virtually always be issued for willful violations, if past corrective actions for similar
violations have not been sufficient to prevent recurrence and there are no other
mitigating circumstances, or if the circumstances otherwise warrant increasing
Severity Level Ill violations to a higher severity level.

c. DOE contractors are not ordinarily cited for violations resulting from matters not
within their control, such as equipment failures that were not avoidable by reasonable
guality assurance measures, proper maintenance, or management controls. With
regard to the issue of funding, however, DOE does not consider an asserted lack of
funding to be a justification for noncompliance with DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements.
Should a contractor believe that a shortage of funding precludes it from achieving
compliance with one or more DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements, it must pursue one of
two alternative courses of action. First, it may request, in writing, an exemption from
the requirement(s) in question from the appropriate Secretarial Officer (SO), explicitly
addressing the criteria for exemptions set forth in 10 CFR 820.62. A justification for
continued operation for the period during which the exemption request is being
considered should also be submitted. In such a case, the SO must grant or deny the
request in writing, explaining the rationale for the decision. Second, if the criteria for
approval of an exemption cannot be demonstrated, the contractor, in conjunction with
the SO, must take appropriate steps to modify, curtail, suspend or cease the activities
which cannot be conducted in compliance with the DOE Nuclear Safety Requirement(s)
in question.

d. DOE expects the contractors which operate its facilities to have the proper
management and supervisory systems in place to assure that all activities at DOE
facilities, regardless of who performs them, are carried out in compliance with all DOE
Nuclear Safety Requirements. Therefore, contractors are normally held responsible for
the acts of their employees and subcontractor employees in the conduct of activities at
DOE facilities. Accordingly, this policy should not be construed to excuse personnel
errors.

e. Finally, certain contractors are explicitly exempted from the imposition of civil
penalties pursuant to the provisions of the PAAA, 42 U.22Z82a(d), for activities
conducted at specified facilities. See 10 C&X0.20(c). In addition, in fairness to
non-profit educational institutions, the Department has determined that they should be
likewise exempted. See 10 CFR 820.20(d). However, compliance with DOE Nuclear
Safety Requirements is no less important for these facilities than for other facilities in
the DOE complex which work with, store or dispose of radioactive materials. Indeed,
the exempted contractors conduct some of the most important nuclear-related research
and development activities performed for the Department. Therefore, in order to serve
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the purposes of this enforcement policy and to emphasize the importance the
Department places on compliance with all of its nuclear safety requirements, DOE
intends to issue Notices of Violation to the exempted contractors and non-profit
educational institutions when appropriate under this policy statement,
notwithstanding the statutory and regulatory exemptions from the imposition of civil
penalties.

2. Civil Penalty

a. Acivil penalty is a monetary penalty that may be imposed for violations of applicable
DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements, including Compliance Orders. See 10 CFR
820.20(b). Civil penalties are designed to emphasize the need for lasting remedial
action, deter future violations, and underscore the importance of DOE contractor
self-identification, reporting and correction of violations of DOE Nuclear Safety
Requirements.

b. Absent mitigating circumstances as described below, or circumstances otherwise
warranting the exercise of enforcement discretion by DOE as described in this section,
civil penalties will be proposed for Severity Level | and Il violations. Civil penalties will
be proposed for Severity Level |1l violations which are similar to previous violations for
which the contractor did not take effective corrective action. “Similar” violations are
those which could reasonably have been expected to have been prevented by corrective
action for the previous violation. DOE normally considers civil penalties only for
similar Severity Level |1l violations that occur over a reasonable period of time to be
determined at the discretion of DOE.

DOE will impose different base level civil penalties considering the severity level of the
violation(s) by Price-Anderson indemnified contractors. Table 1 shows the daily base
civil penalties for the various categories of severity levels. However, as described above
in Section 1V, the imposition of civil penalties will also take into account the gravity,
circumstances, and extent of the violation or violations and, with respect to the violator,
any history of prior similar violations and the degree of culpability and knowledge.

d. Regarding the factor of ability of DOE contractors to pay the civil penalties, it is not
DOE's intention that the economic impact of a civil penalty be such that it puts a DOE
contractor out of business. Contract termination, rather than civil penalties, is used
when the intent is to terminate these activities. The deterrent effect of civil penalties is
best served when the amount of such penalties takes this factor into account. However,
DOE will evaluate the relationship of affiliated entities to the contractor (such as

parent corporations) when it asserts that it cannot pay the proposed penalty.

e. DOE will review each case involving a proposed civil penalty on its own merits and
adjust the base civil penalty values upward or downward appropriately. As indicated
above, Table 1 identifies the daily base civil penalty values for different severity levels.
After considering all relevant circumstances, civil penalties may be escalated or
mitigated based upon the adjustment factors described below in this section. In no
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instance will a civil penalty for any one violation exceed the statutory limit. However, it
should be emphasized that if the DOE contractor is or should have been aware of a
violation and has not reported it to DOE and taken corrective action despite an
opportunity to do so, each day the condition existed may be considered as a separate
violation and, as such, subject to a separate civil penalty. Further, as described in this
section, the duration of a violation will be taken into account in determining the
appropriate severity level of the base civil penalty.

TABLE 1. SEVERITY LEVEL BASE CIVIL PENALTIES

Severity Level Base civil penalty amount (Percentage of maximum
civil penalty per violation per day)

3. Adjustment Factors

a. DOE's enforcement program is not an end in itself, but a means to achieve compliance
with DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements, and civil penalties are not collected to swell the
coffers of the United States Treasury, but to emphasize the importance of compliance and
to deter future violations. The single most important goal of the DOE enforcement
program is to encourage early identification and reporting of nuclear safety deficiencies
and violations of DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements by the DOE contractors themselves
rather than by DOE, and the prompt correction of any deficiencies and violations so
identified. DOE believes that DOE contractors are in the best position to identify and
promptly correct noncompliance with DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements. DOE expects
that these contractors should have in place internal compliance programs which will
ensure the detection, reporting and prompt correction of nuclear safety-related problems
that may constitute, or lead to, violations of DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements before,
rather than after, DOE has identified such violations. Thus, DOE contractors will almost
always be aware of nuclear safety problems before they are discovered by DOE. Obviously,
public and worker health and safety is enhanced if deficiencies are discovered (and
promptly corrected) by the DOE contractor, rather than by DOE, which may not otherwise
become aware of a deficiency until later on, during the course of an inspection,
performance assessment, or following an incident at the facility. Early identification of
nuclear safety-related problems by DOE contractors has the added benefit of allowing
information which could prevent such problems at other facilities in the DOE complex to
be shared with all appropriate DOE contractors.

b. Pursuant to this enforcement philosophy, DOE will provide substantial incentive for the
early self-identification, reporting and prompt correction of problems which constitute, or
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could lead to, violations of DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements. Thus, application of the
adjustment factors set forth below may result in no civil penalty being assessed for
violations that are identified, reported, and promptly and effectively corrected by the DOE
contractor.

c. On the other hand, ineffective programs for problem identification and correction are
unacceptable. Thus, for example, where a contractor fails to disclose and promptly
correct violations of which it was aware or should have been aware, substantial civil
penalties are warranted and may be sought, including the assessment of civil
penalties for continuing violations on a per day basis.

d. Further, in cases involving willfulness, flagrant DOE-identified violations, repeated
poor performance in an area of concern, or serious breakdown in management
controls, DOE intends to apply its full statutory enforcement authority where such
action is warranted.

4. ldentification and Reporting

Reduction of up to 50% of the base civil penalty shown in Table 1 may be given when a
DOE contractor identifies the violation and promptly reports the violation to DOE. In
weighing this factor, consideration will be given to, among other things, the opportunity
available to discover the violation, the ease of discovery and the promptness and
completeness of any required report. No consideration will be given to a reduction in
penalty if the DOE contractor does not take prompt action to report the problem to
DOE upon discovery, or if the immediate actions necessary to restore compliance with
DOE Nuclear Safety Requirements or place the facility or operation in a safe
configuration are not taken.

5. Self-ldentification and Tracking Systems

a. DOE strongly encourages contractors to self-identify noncompliances with DOE
Nuclear Safety Requirements before the noncompliances lead to a string of similar
and potentially more significant events or consequences. When a contractor
identifies a noncompliance through its own self-monitoring activity, DOE will
normally allow a reduction in the amount of civil penalties, regardless of whether
prior opportunities existed for contractors to identify the noncompliance. DOE will
normally not allow a reduction in civil penalties for self-identification if significant
DOE intervention was required to induce the contractor to report a noncompliance.

b. Self-identification of a noncompliance is possibly the single most important factor in
considering a reduction in the civil penalty amount. Consideration of
self-identification is linked to, among other things, whether prior opportunities
existed to discover the violation, and if so, the age and number of such opportunities;
the extent to which proper contractor controls should have identified or prevented
the violation; whether discovery of the violation resulted from a contractor’s
self-monitoring activity; the extent of DOE involvement in discovering the violation
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or in prompting the contractor to identify the violation; aim@& promptness and
completeness of any required report. Self-identification is also considered by DOE in
deciding whether to pursue an investigation.

c. DOE has established a voluntary Noncompliance Tracking System (NTS) which
allows contractors to elect to report noncompliances. In the guidance document
supporting the NTS (DOE-HDBK-1089-95), DOE has established reporting
thresholds for reporting items of noncompliance of potentially greater safety
significance intothe NTS. Contractors may, however, use their own self-tracking
systems to track noncompliances below the reporting threshold. This self-tracking is
considered to be acceptable self-reporting as long as DOE has access tothe
contractor's system and the contractor’s system notes the item as a noncompliance
with a DOE Nuclear Safety Requirement. For noncompliances that are below the
reportability thresholds, DOE will credit contractor self-tracking as representing
self-reporting. If an item is not reported in NTS but only tracked in the contractor's
system and DOE subsequently finds the facts and their safety significance have been
significantly mischaracterized, DOE will not credit the internal tracking as
representing appropriate self-reporting.

6. Self-Disclosing Events

a. DOE expects contractors to demonstrate acceptance of responsibility for safety of the
public, workers, and the environment and to proactively identify noncompliance
conditions in their programs and processes. In deciding whether to reduce any civil
penalty proposed for violations revealed by the occurrence of a self-disclosing event,
DOE will consider the ease with which a contractor could have discovered the
noncompliance and the prior opportunities that existed to discover the
noncompliance. When the occurrence of an event discloses noncompliances that the
contractor could have or should have identified before the event, DOE will not
generally allow a reduction in civil penalties for self-identification, even if the
underlying noncompliances were reported to DOE. If a contractor simply reacts to
events that disclose potentially significant consequences or downplays
noncompliances which did not result in significant consequences to workers, the
public, and the environment, such contractor actions do not lead to the improvement
in nuclear safety contemplated by the Act.

b. The key test is whether the contractor reasonably could have detected any of the
underlying noncompliances that contributed to the event. Examples of events that
provide opportunities to identify noncompliances include, but are not limited to:

(1) prior notifications of potential problems such as those from DOE operational
experience publications or vendor equipment deficiency reports;

(2) normal surveillance, quality assurance assessments, and post-maintenance

testing;

(3) readily observable parameter trends; and

(4) contractor employee or DOE observations of potential safety problems. Failure
to utilize these types of events and activities to address noncompliances may
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result in higher civil penalty assessments or a DOE decision not to reduce civil
penalty amounts.

c. For example, a critique of the event might find that one of the root causes was a
lack of clarity in a Radiation Work Permit (RWP) which led to improper use of
anti-contamination clothing and resulting uptake of contamination by the
individual. DOE could subsequently conclude that no reduction in civil penalties for
self-identification should be allowed since the event itself disclosed the inadequate
RWP and the contractor could have, through proper independent assessment or by
fostering a questioning attitude by its workers and supervisors, identified the
inadequate RWP before the event.

d. Alternatively, if, following a self-disclosing event, DOE found that the contractor’s
processes and procedures were adequate and the contractor’s personnel generally
behaved in a manner consistent with the contractor’s processes and procedures,
DOE could conclude that the contractor could not have been reasonably expected to
find the single procedural noncompliance that led to the event and thus, might
allow a reduction in civil penalties.

7. Corrective Action To Prevent Recurrence

The promptness (or lack thereof) and extent to which the DOE contractor takes
corrective action, including actions to identify root cause and prevent recurrence, may
result in up to a 50% increase or decrease in the base civil penalty shown in Table 1.
For example, very extensive corrective action may result in reducing the proposed civil
penalty as much as 50% of the base value shown in Table 1. On the other hand, the civil
penalty may be increased as much as 50% of the base value if initiation or corrective
action is not prompt or if the corrective action is only minimally acceptable. In weighing
this factor, consideration will be given to, among other things, the appropriateness,
timeliness and degree of initiative associated with the corrective action. The
comprehensiveness of the corrective action will also be considered, taking into account
factors such as whether the action is focused narrowly to the specific violation or
broadly to the general area of concern.

8. DOE's Contribution to a Violation

There may be circumstances in which a violation of a DOE Nuclear Safety Requirement
results, in part or entirely, from a direction given by DOE personnel to a DOE

contractor to either take, or forbear from taking an action at a DOE facility. In such
cases, DOE may refrain from issuing an NOV, and may mitigate, either partially or
entirely, any proposed civil penalty, provided that the direction upon which the DOE
contractor relied is documented in writing, contemporaneously with the direction. It
should be emphasized, however, that pursuant to 10 CFR 820.50, no interpretation of a
DOE Nuclear Safety Requirement is binding upon DOE unless issued in writing by the
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General Counsel. Further, as discussed in this section of this policy statement, lack of
funding by itself will not be considered as a mitigating factor in enforcement actions.

9. Exercise of Discretion

Because DOE wants to encourage and support DOE contractor initiative for prompt
self-identification, reporting and correction of problems, DOE may exercise discretion
as follows:

a. In accordance with the previous discussion, DOE may refrain from issuing a civil
penalty for a violation which meets all of the following criteria:

(1) The violation is promptly identified and reported to DOE before DOE learns of it.

(2) The violation is not willful or a violation that could reasonably be expected to
have been prevented by the DOE contractor's corrective action for a previous
violation.

(3) The DOE contractor, upon discovery of the violation, has taken or begun to take
prompt and appropriate action to correct the violation.

(4) The DOE contractor has taken, or has agreed to take, remedial action
satisfactory to DOE to preclude recurrence of the violation and the underlying
conditions which caused it.

b. DOE may refrain from proposing a civil penalty for a violation involving a past
problem, such as in engineering design or installation, that meets all of the
following criteria:

(1) It was identified by a DOE contractor as a result of a formal effort such as a
Safety System Functional Inspection, Design Reconstitution program, or other
program that has a defined scope and timetable which is being aggressively
implemented and reported,;

(2) Comprehensive corrective action has been taken or is well underway within a
reasonable time following identification; and

(3) It was not likely to be identified by routine contractor efforts such as normal
surveillance or quality assurance activities.

c. DOE will not issue a Notice of Violation for cases in which the violation discovered
by the DOE contractor cannot reasonably be linked to the conduct of that contractor
in the design, construction or operation of the DOE facility involved, provided that
prompt and appropriate action is taken by the DOE contractor upon identification of
the past violation to report to DOE and remedy the problem.

d. DOE may refrain from issuing a Notice of Violation for an item of noncompliance
that meets all of the following criteria:

(1) It was promptly identified by the DOE nuclear entity;
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(2) It is normally classified at a Severity Level Ill;

(3) It was promptly reported to DOE;

(4) Prompt and appropriate corrective action will be taken, including measures to
prevent recurrence; and

(5) It was not a willful violation or a violation that could reasonably be expected to
have been prevented by the DOE contractor's corrective action for a previous
violation.

e. DOE may refrain from issuing a Notice of Violation for an item of noncompliance
that meets all of the following criteria:
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(1) It was an isolated Severity Level Il violation identified during a Tiger Team
inspection conducted by the Office of Environment, Safety and Health, during
an inspection or integrated performance assessment conducted by the Office of
Nuclear Safety, or during some other DOE assessment activity.

(2) The identified noncompliance was properly reported by the contractor upon

discovery.

(3) The contractor initiated or completed appropriate assessment and corrective
actions within a reasonable period, usually before the termination of the onsite
inspection or integrated performance assessment.

(4) The violation is not willful or one which could reasonably be expected to have
been prevented by the DOE contractor's corrective action for a previous
violation.

f. In situations where corrective actions have been completed before termination of an
inspection or assessment, a formal response from the contractor is not required and
the inspection or integrated performance assessment report serves to document the
violation and the corrective action. However, in all instances, the contractor is
required to report the noncompliance through established reporting mechanisms so
the noncompliance issue and any corrective actions can be properly tracked and
monitored.

g. IfDOE initiates an enforcement action for a violation at a Severity Level Il or Il
and, as part of the corrective action for that violation, the DOE contractor identifies
other examples of the violation with the same root cause, DOE may refrain from
initiating an additional enforcement action. In determining whether to exercise this
discretion, DOE will consider whether the DOE contractor acted reasonably and in
a timely manner appropriate to the safety significance of the initial violation, the
comprehensiveness of the corrective action, whether the matter was reported, and
whether the additional violation(s) substantially change the safety significance or
character of the concern arising out of the initial violation.

h. It should be emphasized that the preceding paragraphs are solely intended to be
examples indicating when enforcement discretion may be exercised to forego the
issuance of a civil penalty or, in some cases, the initiation of any enforcement action
at all. However, notwithstanding these examples, a civil penalty may be proposed or
Notice of Violation issued when, in DOE's judgment, such action is warranted on
the basis of the circumstances of an individual case.

5. Newly designated Section X., Procurement of Products or Services and the
Reporting of Defects, is amended by adding the paragraph designations a.
b. and c. to the first three paragraphs.

6. Newly designated Section Xl., Inaccurate and Incomplete Information, is
amended by adding the paragraph designations a. and b. to the first two

Page A-19



June 1998 OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES FOR ENFORCEMENT

paragraphs, redesignating paragraphs (a) through (g) as (b)(1) through (b)(7),
and adding the paragraph designations c.,d.,e. and f. to the remaining
paragraphs.

7. Newly-designated Section XlIl, Secretarial Notification and Consultation, is
amended by revising “$100,000"to read “the statutory limit”in paragraph
a.

Rev. 7-7/10/97
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APPENDIX B

NONCOMPLIANCE REVIEW FORM
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Page 1 of 2
NTS Noncompliance No.:
ORPS No.;
Other ID No:.
NONCOMPLIANCE REVIEW FORM
ISSUES REVIEW FORM
Date:
Enforcement Evaluator:
Contractor Name:
Site/Facility:
Facility Function:
Lead DOE PAAA Coordinator/Phone Number:
Lead Contractor PAAA Coordinator/Phone Number:
Date Activity Occurred/Noncompliance (NC) Identified:
Date NC Reported:
Specific Requirement(s) Violated:
Applicable Exemptions from Docket File (if any)
Determination of Safety Significance/Apparent Severity Levels:
Probable Causes:
Page 2 of 2

Method of Identification (Contractor, DOE/Field or Operations, DOE HQ or Other, i.e., State or
Federal

Inspector, Allegation, DNFSB, etc.):
Corrective Actions Taken or Planned to Date:

History of Similar Violations--Prior Contractor and/or Prior Facility Performance (PNOVs, Similar
NCs, No. of NCs):

Audits, Lessons-Learned, Reports, etc., that might have identified precursor conditions or targeted this
issue:
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Multiple Examples:
Duration of NC Condition:
RECOMMENDATION:

Enforcement Director's Review of Recommended Actions:

* Enforcement Director Signature:

(OR) Director
Enforcement Evaluator Peer Review Signature:
Printed Name; Date:

*Enforcement Director or his designee signs if an enforcement action or enforcement letter has been issued
on this NTS report.
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APPENDIX C

CHECKLIST FOR

PREPARATION OF ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS
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CHECKLIST FOR PREPARATION OF A
PROPOSED ENFORCEMENT ACTION
CONTRACTOR:
FACILITY: (Name and DOE-STD-1027 Classification, if applicable)
EANUMBER:
A. Summary of Recommended Enforcement Action
B. Brief Summary of Inspection or Assessment Findings
C. Analysis of the Root Cause and the Message to be Provided to the Contractor
D. Discussion of Basis for Severity Level, including the following:
1. Safety significance or gravity of violation;
2. Degree of culpability of contractor with regard to violation, i.e., inadvertent vs gross
negligence, deception or willfulness;
3. Position, training and experience of person(s) involved in violation;
4. Duration of violation;
5. Past performance and similar violations;
6. Prior notice of potential problem;
7. Multiple examples within same time frame;
8. Timely and complete notification to DOE, in accordance with reporting requirements;
9. Ability to pay;
10. Aggregation of violations for increased severity level, considering number and
nature of each violation.
E. _Rationale for Each Factor Used in Adjustment of Base Civil Penalty:

Maximum

Possible

Adjustment

1. Prompt identification and reporting (-50% to + 0%)

2. Corrective action(s) to prevent recurrence 5Q%)

©oe o

Timeliness;

Root cause identification;

Appropriateness of actions;

Degree of initiative shown;

Comprehensiveness of actions, i.e., narrowly focused or broadly addressing areas of
concern.
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3. Possible DOE contribution to a violation (+ 0% to -100%)
a. Written, contemporaneous direction required from DOE regarding contractor actions or

forbearance of actions;
b. Interpretations of nuclear safety requirements valid only when issued in writing by

DOE General Counsel;
c. Lack of DOE funding not a basis for penalty mitigation.

F. Justification if Not Proposing a Civil Penalty for a Repetitive Severity Level Ill Violation

G. Confirmation That This Action Is Consistent with Similar Actions Taken by Office of
Enforcement and Investigation, or Provide Explanation for Any Inconsistencies
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APPENDIXD

SUGGESTED FORMATS FOR

ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS
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SUGGESTED FORMATS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS

This Appendix includes formats that may be used in preparing and processing enforcement
packages. These formats are provided as guidance, and may be modified as needed for
individual enforcement actions.

Form 1: Cover Letter for Enforcement Action Without a Civil Penalty

Form 2: *Preliminary Notice of Violation (for all violations without a civil penalty)

Form 3: Cover Letter for Enforcement Action With a Civil Penalty

Form 4: *Preliminary Notice With All Violations Assessed a Civil Penalty

Form 5: *Preliminary Notice With Some Violations Assessed a Civil Penalty and Some
Violations Not Assessed a Civil Penalty

Form 6: Cover Letter for Order Imposing Civil Monetary Penalty

Form 7: Order Imposing Civil Monetary Penalty

*Essentially the same formats may be used for Final Notices of Violation in the event the
PNOV is contested.

Key to Format Notation

Symbol Meaning
( ) or i in the blank with the appropriate information.
() Text within parentheses indicates the optional use of an alternative

word or an optional choice or the plural form of the word preceding
the parentheses.

[ ] Text within brackets indicates narrative guidance that should be
followed in terms of addressing specific elements that should be
included in the particular document.

Text within quotes indicates a suggested sentence or language.
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FORM 1: Cover Letter for Enforcement Action Without a Civil Penalty

(Name of Contractor)
(Address)

EA No.
Gentlemen:

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY* NOTICE OF VIOLATION
NONCOMPLIANCE REPORT NO(S).

This letter refers to the (investigatiorgonducted on (datespt the_ (plant name)

facility. [At a minimum, the narrative that follows should address the following areas: (1)
who identified the violation(s), e.g., the contractor or DOE, (2) if and how it was reported,
e.g., Noncompliance Tracking SystemReport, Occurrence Report, etc., and (3) when the

investigation report related to this action was issued.]**

[This section should include the following: (1) a description of the event or circumstances
that resulted in the violation(s), (2) the length of time the violation(s) lasted or when was it
identified, (3) the operational mode of the facility at the time of the violation(s), and (4) the
root cause(s) of the violation(s). It should also include a discussion of the significance of the
violation(s) including the nuclear safety significance and the potential risk to workers and to
the public. It should discuss the nuclear safety message that should be conveyed to the
contractor. It should also discuss how the safety significance relates to severity level
categorization. It should also include an analysis of any extenuating factors.] Therefore,
this (these) violation(s) has (have) been categorized as Severity Level . [Alternatively,
"Therefore, the violations are classified in the aggregate as a Severity Leveproblem."]

In accordance with the "General Statement of Enforcement Policy"” (Enforcement Policy) 10
CFR 820, Appendix A, a civil penalty is considered for a Severity Level violation

(problem). However, after review of the facts of this case, DOE has decided that a civil
penalty will not be proposed in this case because (explanation based on mitigating factors in
the Enforcement Policy, the various discretion factors in 10 CFR 820, Appen(@ixdkher
considerations).

You are required to respond to this letter and you should follow the instructions specified in
the enclosed Notice of Violation (Notice) when preparing your response. Your response
should document any additional specific actions taken, any additional actions you plan to
prevent recurrence, and the scheduled completion of such actions. [Other specific responses
required should be addressed as appropriate.]
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(Contractor)

-2-

After reviewing your response to this Notice, including your proposed corrective actions and
the results of future assessments or inspections, DOE will determine whether further

enforcement action is necessary to ensure compliance with DOE nuclear safety
requirements.

In the event there is an admission of the violation set forth above, the Preliminary Notice of

Violation will constitute a Final Notice of Violation in compliance with the requirements of
10 CFR 820.25.

Sincerely,

Director

Office of Enforcement and Investigation

Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Environment, Safety and Health

Enclosure:
Preliminary Notice of Violation

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

*The same format may be used for a Final Notice of Violation (FNOV).
**Include for FNOV only.
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FORM 2: PNOV* For All Violations Without a Civil Penalty
PRELIMINARY NOTICE OF VIOLATION*

(Name of Contractor)
(Facility Name)

EA No.

During a DOE investigation conducted on (date(ga) violation(s) of DOE nuclear safety
requirements was (were) identified. In accordance with the "General Statement of
Enforcement Policy,”" 10 CFR 820, Appendix A, the violation(s) is (are) listed below:

A. (State DOE nuclear safety requirement that was violated.)

Contrary to the above, (date and the basis for the preliminary determination**that a
violation occurred and/or is continuing to ocgur

This a Severity Level violation.

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 820.24**, (name of contradohereby required to
submit a written statement or explanation to the Director, Office of Enforcement and
Investigation, P.O. Box 2225, Germantown, MD 20875-2225, Attention: Office of the
Docketing Clerk. Copies should also be sent to the Manager, DOE Operations
Office, and tothe DOE Cognizant Secretarial Office, Headquarters for the facility that is
the subject of this notice, within 30 days of the date of the letter transmitting this Notice of
Violation (Notice). This reply should be clearly marked as a "Reply to a Preliminary Notice
of Violation" and should include for each violation: (1) the reason for the violation, or, if
contested, the basis for disputing the violation, (2) the corrective actions that have been
taken and the results achieved, (3) the corrective actions that will be taken to avoid further
violations, and (4) the date when full compliance will be achieved. In the event you admit
the violation set forth in this Preliminary Notice of Violation, this Notice will constitute a
Final Notice of Violation in compliance with the requirements of 10 CFR 820.25.

Dated at (City, State)
this __ day of_(Month) (Year)

Director

Office of Enforcement and Investigation

Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Environment, Safety and Health
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* The same format may be used for an FNOV.
**Eor an FNOV, "Preliminary Notice of Violation" should be changed to "Final Notice of
Violation" in compliance with 10 CFR 820.25.

Page D-6



June 1998 OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES FOR ENFORCEMENT

FORM 3: Cover Letter for Enforcement Action With Civil Penalty

(Name of Contractor)
(Address)

EA No.
Gentlemen:

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY* NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF
CIVIL PENALTY(IES) - $XXX,XXX
NONCOMPLIANCE REPORT NO(S).

This letter refers to the investigation conducted on (datdsthe_ (plant name)facility.

[At a minimum, the narrative that follows should address the following areas: (1) who
identified the violation, e.g., the contractor or DOE, (2) if and how it was reported, e.g.,
Noncompliance Tracking System Report, Occurrence Reports, etc., (3) when the
investigation report related to this action was issued] and (4) if and when an enforcement
conference was held.]**

[This section should include the following: (1) a description of the event or circumstances
that resulted in the violation(s), (2) the length of time the violation(s) lasted or when it was
identified, (3) the operational mode of the facility at the time of the violation(s), and (4) the
root cause(s) of the violation(s).]

[This section should include a discussion of the significance of the violation(s) including the
nuclear safety significance and the potential risk to workers and to the public. It should
discuss the nuclear safety message that should be conveyed to the contractor. It should also
discuss how the safety significance relates to severity level categorization. It should also
include an analysis of any extenuating factors.] Therefore, in accordance with the "General
Statement of Enforcement Policy,” (Enforcement Policy) 10 CFR 820, Appendix A, this
violation has been categorized as Severity Level [Alternatively, "Therefore, in

accordance with the "General Statement of Enforcement Policy" (Enforcement Policy)

10 CFR 820, Appendix A, the violations are classified in the aggregate as a Severity Level
problem."]

[This section should recognize the status of the contractor's corrective actions to date, the
status of compliance, or the date when compliance will be achieved. Such as, "The staff
recognizes that immediate corrective action was taken when the violation was identified."]

Toemphasize (state the area where improvement is needed, i.e., the purpose of the action)
,  am issuing the enclosed Preliminary Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil
Penalty(ies) (Notice) in the amount of $XXX,XXX for the Severity
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Contractor
-2 -

Level__ violation(s). The base value of a civil penalty for a Severity Leveviolation is
XXX, XXX. The escalation and mitigation factors in the Enforcement Policy were
considered.

[This section should include a discussion of the application of the adjustment factors in the
Enforcement Policy (10 CFR 820, Appendix A) including reasons for mitigation and/or
escalation of the base civil penalty. The discussion should be specific and should address
the factors for which mitigation and/or escalation of the base civil penalty was deemed
appropriate, including those cases in which weighing all the factors results in no change to
the base civil penalty. It should also include a statement addressing those factors that were
clearly not relevant, such as, "The other adjustment factors in the Policy were considered
and no further adjustment to the base civil penalty is considered appropriate."]

[This section should include one of the following conclusions, depending on the outcome of
the case. For cases in which the base civil penalty has been either increased or decreased:
"Therefore, based on the above, the base civil penalty has been increased (decreased) by
_." For cases in which there is no adjustment: "Therefore, based on the above, no
adjustment to the base civil penalty has been deemed appropriate." For cases in which the
mitigation and escalation for the factors balanced: "Therefore, on balance, no adjustment to
the base civil penalty has been deemed appropriate."]

[This section should include a discussion of any violation(s) included in the enforcement
action which are not assessed a civil penalty, making reference to the exercise of discretion
provision of the Enforcement Policy, 10 CFR 820.]

You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions specified in the
enclosed Notice when preparing your response. In your response, you should document the
specific actions taken, any additional actions you plan to prevent recurrence, and the
scheduled completion date of these actions. [Other specific responses required should be
addressed as appropriate.] After reviewing your response to this Notice, including your
proposed corrective actions, DOE will determine whether further enforcement action is
necessary to ensure compliance with DOE nuclear safety requirements. In the event there
is an admission of the violation(s) set forth above, the Preliminary Notice of Violation will
constitute a Final Notice of Violation in compliance with the requirements of 10 CFR 820.25.

Sincerely,

Director

Office of Enforcement and Investigation

Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Environment, Safety and Health
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CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Enclosure: Preliminary Notice of Violation and Proposed Civil Penalty(ies)

*The same format may be used for an FNOV.
**Include for FNOV only.
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FORM 4: Preliminary Notice With All Violations Assessed a Civil Penalty

PRELIMINARY NOTICE OF VIOLATION*
AND
PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTY(IES)

(Name of Contractor)
(Facility Name)

EA No.

During a DOE investigation conducted on (datega) violation(s) of (a) DOE nuclear
safety requirement(s) was (were) identified. In accordance with the "General
Statement of Enforcement Policy," 10 CFR 820, Appendix A, the biepant of Energy
proposes to impose a civil penalty(ies) pursuant to Section 234A of the Atomic Energy
Act of 1954, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2282 a., and 10 CFR 820. The particular
violation(s) and associated civil penalty(ies) are set forth below:

A. (State DOE nuclear safety requirement that was violgted.

Contrary to the above, (date and the basis for the preliminary determination**
that a violation had occurred or was continuing to occur)

This is a Severity Level _violation (problem).
Civil Penalty - $XXX,XXX.

B. (State second nuclear safety requirement that was violated.

Contrary to the above, (date and the basis for the preliminary determination**
that a violation had occurred or was continuing to occur.)

This is a Severity Level _violation (problem).
Civil Penalty - $XXX, XXX

[Note: When several violations are considered in the aggregate and assessed one
civil penalty, use the term "penalty" instead of "penalties" throughout the Notice,
refer to it as a problem versus a violation, and include either of the following
statements: "Cumulative Civil Penalty - $XXX, XXX (assessed equally between
[among] the__(insert number)yiolations.)" or "Cumulative Civil Penalty -

FXXX, XXX (assessed $XXX, XXX for Violation A, $XXX,XXX for Violation B and

XXX, XXX for Violation C, etc.)" Also note that the total number of violations
specified should correspond to the number of "contrary to" statements in the
Notice.]
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Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 820.24, (the Contractor) is hereby required within
30 days of the date of this Notice and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty, to submit a
written statement or explanation to the Director, Office of Enforcement and
Investigation, P.O. Box 2225, Germantown, MD 20875-2225, Attention: Office of the
Docketing Clerk. Copies should also be sent to the Manager (DOE Project Office and
Operations Office, as applicable) and to the cognizant Secretarial Office for the facility
that is the subject of this notice. The reply should be clearly marked as a "Reply to a
Preliminary Notice of Violation and Proposed Civil Penalty" and should include the
following for each violation: (1) admission or denial of the alleged violation; (2) the facts
set forth which are not correct and the reasons for the violation if admitted, and if
denied, the reasons they are not correct; (3) the corrective steps that have been taken
and the results achieved; (4) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further
violations; and (5) the date when full compliance will be achieved.

Any request for remission or mitigation of civil penalty must be accompanied by
substantive justification demonstrating extenuating circumstances or other reasons
why the assessed penalty should not be paid in full. Unless the violations are denied, or
remission or mitigation is requested within 30 days after the issuance of this
Preliminary Notice of Violation and Civil Penalty, (the Contractor) shall pay the civil
penalty imposed under Section 234a of the Act by check, draft or money order payable
tothe Treasurer of the United States (Account Number 901099) mailed to the Director,
Office of Enforcement and Investigation, P.O. Box 2225, Germantown, MD 20875,
Attention: Office of the Docketing Clerk. Should the contractor fail to answer within

the time specified, an order imposing the civil penalty will be issued.

If requesting mitigation of the proposed penalty, (the Contractor) should address the
adjustment factors in 10 CFR 820, Appendix A.

In the event you admit the violation set forth in this Preliminary Notice of Violation,
this Notice will constitute a Final Notice of Violation in compliance with the
requirements of 10 CFR 820.25.

Director

Office of Enforcement and Investigation

Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Environment, Safety and Health

Dated at__(City, State)
this __ day of__(Month) _(Year)

*The same format myabe used for an FNOV.
**Eor an FNOV, "preliminay determination” should be chged to a "determination.”
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FORM 5: Preliminary Notice With Some Violations Assessed a Civil
Penalty and Some Violations Not Assessed a Civil Penalty

PRELIMINARY* NOTICE OF VIOLATION
AND
PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTY(IES)

(Name of Contractor)
(Facility Name)

EA No.

During a DOE investigation conducted on (date(s)olations of DOE nuclear safety
requirements were identified. In accordance with the "General Statement of
Enforcement Policy," 10 CFR 820, Appendix A, the Detmaent of Energy proposes to
impose (a) civil penalty(ies) pursuant to Section 234A of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954,
as amended (Act), 42 U.S.C. 2282a., and 10 CFR 820. The particular violations and
associated civil penalty(ies) are set forth below:

l. Violations Assessed a Civil Penalty

A. (State requirement that was violated.)

Contrary to the above, (date and the basis for the preliminary
determination** that a violation had occurred or was continuing to 9ccur

This is a Severity Level _violation (problem).
Civil Penalty - $XXX,XXX.

B. (State requirement that was violated)

Contrary to the above, (date and the basis for the preliminary
determinatior* that a violation had occurred or was continuing to ogcur

This is a Severity Level _violation (problem.
Civil Penalty - $XXX,XXX.

[Note: When several violations are considered in the aggregate and assessed one
civil penalty, use the term "penalty" instead of "penalties" throughout the Notice,
refer to it as a problem versus a violation, and include either of the following
statements: "Cumulative Civil Penalty - $XXX, XXX (assessed equally between
(among) the (insert numbpviolations)" or "Cumulative Civil Penalty -

FXXX, XXX (assessed $XXX, XXX for Violation A, $XXX,XXX for Violation B, and

XXX, XXX for Violation C, etc.)." Also note that the total number of violations
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specified should correspond to the number of "contrary to" statements in the
Notice.]

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 820.24, (the Contractor) is hereby required within
30 days of the date of this Notice and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty(ies), to
submit a written statement or explanation to the Director, Office of Enforcement and
Investigation, P.O. Box 2225,, Germantown, MD 20875-2225, Attention: Office of the
Docketing Clerk. Copies should also be sent to the Manager (DOE Project Office and
Operations Office, as applicable) and to the cognizant Secretarial Office for the facility
that is the subject of this notice. The reply should be clearly marked as a "Reply to a
Preliminary Notice of Violation and Proposed Civil Penalty" and should include the
following for each violation: (1) admission or denial of the alleged violation; (2) the facts
set forth which are not correct and the reasons for the violation if admitted, and if
denied, the reasons they are not correct; (3) the corrective steps that have been taken
and the results achieved; (4) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further
violations; and (5) the date when full compliance will be achieved.

Any request for remission or mitigation of civil penalty must be accompanied by
substantive justification demonstrating extenuating circumstances or other reasons
why the assessed penalty should not be paid in full. Unless the violations are denied, or
remission or mitigation is requested within 30 days after the issuance of this
Preliminary Notice of Violation and Civil Penalty(ies), (the Contractor) shall pay the

civil penalty imposed under Section 234a of the Act by check, draft or money order
payable tothe Treasurer of the United States (Account Number 901099) mailed to the
Director, Office of Enforcement and Investigation, P.O. Box 2225, Germantown, MD
20875-2225, Attention: Office of the Docketing Clerk. Should the contractor fail to
answer within the time specified, an order imposing the civil penalty will be issued.

If requesting mitigation of the proposed penalty, (the Contractor) should address the
adjustment factors in 10 CFR 820, Appendix A.

Il. Violations Not Assessed a Civil Penalty

A. (State requirement that was violated)

Contrary to the above, (date and the basis for the preliminary
determination** that a violation had occurred or was continuing to occur.

This is a Severity Level _violation (problem).

B. (State requirement that was violated.)

Contrary to the above, (date and the basis for the preliminary
determination** that a violation had occurred or was continuing to occur.

This is a Severity Level _violation (problem).
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In the event you admit the violation set forth in this Preliminary Notice of Violation,
this Notice will constitute a Final Notice of Violation in compliance with the
requirements of 10 CFR 820.25.

Director

Office of Enforcement and Investigation

Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Environment, Safety and Health

Dated at__(City, State)
this___ day of_(Month) _('Year)

*The same format myabe used for an FNOV.
*Eor an FNOV, "preliminay determination” should be chged to "determination."
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FORM 6: Cover Letter for Order Imposing Civil Monetary Penalty

(Name of Contractor)
(Address)

EA No.
Gentlemen:

SUBJECT: ORDER IMPOSING CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY - $XXX, XXX
(Name of Facility)

This letter refers to your letter dated (dat@&) response to the Notice of Violation and
Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty(ies) (Notice) sent to you by our letter dated (date)
. Our letter and Notice describe (state number of violatignidentified_ (state how
identified, DOE inspection, assessment or other)

To emphasize (use the same language from the original letter proposing the civil
penalty), a civil penalty(ies) of $XXX,XXX was proposed.

In your response(s) you (state in this area whether contractor admits/denies facts in
the Notice and specific requests made by contractor in respanse)

After consideration of your response(s), we have concluded for the reasons given in the
appendix attached to the enclosed Order Imposing Civil Monetary Penalty that (state
conclusion). Accordingly, we hereby serve the enclosed Order on (name of contractor)
imposing a civil monetary penalty in the amount of $XXX,XXX. Wa#lweview the

effectiveness of your corrective actions during subsequent inspections or assessments.

Sincerely,

Director

Office of Enforcement and Investigation

Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Environment, Safety, and Health

Enclosures:
Order Imposing Civil Monetary Penalty

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
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FORM 7: Order Imposing Civil Monetary Penalty

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

In the Matter of (Contractor)
for _(Facility Name)

EA No.

ORDER IMPOSING CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY

(Name of contractor)(Contractor) is the organization responsible for the safety at the
(DOE facility name) in accordance with Contract No. with the U.S.
Department of Enagyy. This contract authorizes Contractor_to (operatdimaintain)
(decontaminate) _(decommission) _(etc.) this facility in accordance with the
conditions specified therein.

An investigation of the Contractor's activities was conducted on (or during) (date)

The results of this investigation indicated that the Contractor had not conducted its
activities in full compliance with DOE nuclear safety requirements. A written Notice of
Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty(ies) (Notice) was served upon the
Contractor by letter dated (date)The Notice states the nature of the violation(s), the
provision(s) of DOE's nuclear safety requirements that the Contractor had violated, and
the amount of the civil penalty(ies) proposed for the violation(s).

The Contractor responded to the Notice dated (dat#) its response, the Contractor
stated [describe the contractor's arguments].

After consideration of the Contractor's response and the statements of fact,
explanation, and argument for mitigation contained therein, DOE has determined, as
set forth in the Appendix to this Order, that the violation(s) occurred as stated and that
the penalty(ies) proposed for the violation(s) designated in the Notice should be
imposed.

v
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In view of the foregoing and pursuant to Section 234A of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954,
as amended (Act), 42 U.S.C. §2282a., and 10 CFR 820, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED
THAT:

The Contractor pay a civil penalty(ies) in the amount of $XXX, XXX within 30 days of
the date of this Order, by check, draft, money order, or electronic transfer, payable to
the Treasurer of the United States and mailed to the Director, Office of Enforcement
and Investigation, P.O. Box 2225, Germantown, MD 20875-2225, Attention: Office of
the Docketing Clerk.

Vv

The Contractor may request a hearing within 30 days of the date of this Order. A
request for a hearing should be clearly marked as a "Request for an Enforcement
Hearing," Director, Office of Enforcement and Investigation, P.O. Box 2225,
Germantown, MD 20875-2225, Attention: Office of the Docketing Clerk. Copies also
should be sent to the Manager, DOE Operations Office, and the DOE
Headquarters Cognizant Secretarial Officer responsible for the facility subject to this
Order.

If a hearing is requested, the Departmenit issue an Order designating the time and
place of the hearing. Ifthe Contractor fails to request a hearing within 30 days of the
date of this Order, the provisions of this Order shall be final without further

proceedings. If payment has not been made by that time, the matter may be referred to
the Attorney General for collection.

In the event the Contractor requests a hearing as provided above, the issues to be
considered at such hearing shall be:

(@) whether the Contractor was in violation of the Department's nuclear safety
requirements as set forth in the Notice references in Section Il above, and

(b) whether, on the basis of such violation, this Order should be sustained.*

FOR THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Director

Office of Enforcement and Investigation

Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Environment, Safety and Health

Dated at_ (City, State)
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this___ day of (Month) _(Year)
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-3 -
*For those cases where the Contractor has specifically admitted all the violations,
delete (a) and (b) and use:

"Whether on the basis of the violations admitted by the Contractor, this Order
should be sustained.”

For those cases where the Contractor has admitted some of the violations, delete
existing (a) and (b) and use:

"(@a) [reference the violations not admitted], and
"(b) whether, on the basis of such violations and the additional violations set

forth in the Notice of Violation that the Contractor admitted, this Order should be
sustained."”
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